

Viksit Bharat 2047: An Integrated Framework of Innovation, Technology and Inclusive Growth

Dr. Arti Dhananjay Khandhar
Adhyapak Sahayak
Anand Commerce College

Abstract

The vision of *Viksit Bharat 2047* represents India's long-term aspiration to emerge as a developed, inclusive, and globally competitive nation by the centenary of its independence. This paper examines how innovation, technology, and flagship national missions collectively contribute to achieving this vision. Using a qualitative and analytical research design based on secondary data, the study synthesizes insights from key initiatives such as Digital India, Make in India, Atmanirbhar Bharat, Startup India, Smart Cities Mission, Atal Innovation Mission, and Swachh Bharat Abhiyan. The analysis highlights the role of digital transformation, manufacturing self-reliance, start-up ecosystems, incubation support, sustainable urbanization, and sanitation reforms in promoting economic growth, employment generation, social inclusion, and environmental sustainability. By integrating sector-wise data and policy outcomes, the paper proposes a unified framework that positions innovation as the central driver of development. The study concludes that sustained policy convergence, human capital development, and inclusive technological diffusion are essential for realizing the objectives of *Viksit Bharat 2047* and establishing India as a resilient and technology-driven developed nation.

Keywords: *Viksit Bharat 2047; Innovation; Digital India; Inclusive Growth; Start-ups; Atmanirbhar Bharat; Smart Cities; Sustainable Development*

1. Introduction

India's developmental journey has entered a decisive phase with the articulation of *Viksit Bharat 2047*, a national vision aimed at achieving developed-nation status by 2047. This vision extends beyond conventional economic indicators and emphasizes inclusive growth, technological leadership, sustainability, and institutional efficiency. In an era characterized by rapid technological change and global competition, innovation-driven development has emerged as a critical pathway for achieving long-term national prosperity.

Over the past decade, India has launched several flagship initiatives—such as Startup India, Digital India, Smart Cities Mission, Make in India, Atmanirbhar Bharat, and Swachh Bharat Abhiyan—to address structural constraints and unlock new growth opportunities. While these initiatives target different sectors, they are interlinked through a common emphasis on innovation, technology adoption, and citizen-centric governance. This paper argues that their collective and integrated implementation is essential for realizing the goals of *Viksit Bharat 2047*.

2. Review of Literature

The vision of *Viksit Bharat 2047* has attracted growing scholarly and policy-oriented attention, particularly in the areas of innovation-led growth, digital transformation, and inclusive development. Existing literature highlights that long-term national development increasingly depends on the ability to integrate technology, entrepreneurship, and institutional reforms into a coherent growth strategy.

Several studies emphasize the role of innovation and start-ups as engines of economic transformation. Choudhury (2023) argues that innovation-driven entrepreneurship enhances productivity and generates employment, especially when supported by incubation ecosystems. Gupta (2023) further notes that start-ups contribute to regional development by decentralizing economic opportunities beyond metropolitan centers. Research on the Atal Innovation Mission indicates that incubation support improves survival rates

and scalability of early-stage enterprises, thereby strengthening India's innovation capacity (NITI Aayog, 2016).

The literature on Digital India underscores its transformative impact on governance, financial inclusion, and service delivery. Meit Y (2022) reports that digital public infrastructure such as Aadhaar, UPI, and e-governance platforms has significantly reduced transaction costs and improved administrative efficiency. World Bank (2022) studies highlight that digital payments and online services have expanded access for marginalized populations, although challenges related to the digital divide persist, particularly in rural and gender contexts (Kaur, 2023).

Urban development scholars focus extensively on the Smart Cities Mission as a model for sustainable urbanization. Chakraborty and Dutta (2022) observe that smart-city interventions integrating ICT governance, renewable energy, and intelligent transport systems improve urban resilience and environmental outcomes. Sharma (2020) emphasizes that Integrated Command and Control Centres have strengthened real-time urban management, although equitable access and long-term financial sustainability remain areas of concern.

Research on Make in India and Atmanirbhar Bharat highlights manufacturing and self-reliance as critical pillars of India's development strategy. Economic Survey (2023) data indicate that rising FDI inflows and production-linked incentive schemes have boosted electronics manufacturing and supply-chain localization. Gupta and Rajan (2022) argue that deeper MSME integration into global value chains is essential for translating manufacturing growth into broad-based employment gains.

The Swachh Bharat Abhiyan has been widely studied from public health and social development perspectives. WHO (2020) findings link improved sanitation coverage to reductions in waterborne diseases and improvements in child health outcomes. Patel (2021) and Singh (2022) stress that behavioural change and community participation are as important as infrastructure creation for ensuring long-term sanitation sustainability.

While existing studies provide valuable insights into individual missions and sectors, a notable gap remains in the literature regarding integrated analysis. Most studies examine initiatives in isolation, with limited emphasis on cross-sectoral convergence. This paper addresses this gap by synthesizing innovation, technology, governance, and social development into a unified analytical framework aligned with the objectives of Viksit Bharat 2047.

3. Objectives of the Study

1. To examine the role of innovation and start-ups in driving India's long-term economic transformation.
2. To analyze the contribution of major national missions toward inclusive, technology-led development.
3. To assess how digitalization and manufacturing self-reliance strengthen India's global competitiveness.
4. To propose an integrated analytical framework aligning innovation, technology, and inclusive growth for achieving Viksit Bharat 2047.

4. Research Methodology

The study adopts a qualitative and analytical research design based on secondary data. Sources include government policy documents, annual mission reports, international organization publications, and peer-reviewed academic literature. A thematic analysis approach is used to identify linkages between innovation, technology, and development outcomes. Comparative assessment of sectoral data supports the formulation of an integrated development framework.

5. Data Analysis and Interpretation

5.1 Inclusive Digital Transformation by Digital India Mission

The Digital India Mission, launched in 2015, aims to transform India into a digitally empowered society and knowledge-based economy. The initiative has expanded internet connectivity and strengthened digital public infrastructure across the country. It has promoted financial inclusion through digital payments and platforms such as UPI. Digital India has also improved access to government services through e-governance initiatives.

Table 1: Progress of Digital India Mission (2014–2023)

Year	Internet Penetration (%)	UPI Transactions (In Billion)	E-Governance Services Online Services	Digital Literacy Beneficiaries (In Million)
2014	19	0	50	10
2018	36	0.55	1000	150
2020	45	1.25	2200	300
2023	55	9	4200	500

Source: Ministry of Electronics & IT (MeitY, 2015–2023), Telecom Regulatory Authority of India (TRAI, 2023), NPCI (2023)

The table highlights the steady growth of digital infrastructure and digital inclusion in India from 2014 to 2023. In 2014, internet penetration was limited to 19%, with only 50 online government services and 10 million digital literacy beneficiaries. By 2018, internet penetration increased to 36%, UPI transactions reached 0.55 billion, and online services expanded to 1,000, benefiting 150 million individuals. In 2020, internet access further rose to 45%, UPI usage increased to 1.25 billion transactions, and online services grew to 2,200, while digital literacy coverage reached 300 million beneficiaries. By 2023, internet penetration climbed to 55%, UPI transactions surged to 9 billion, and online services expanded to 4,200, supporting 500 million digitally literate citizens. Overall, the data reflects rapid digital adoption, enhanced financial inclusion, and significant expansion of technology-enabled public services across India.

5.2 Manufacturing Self-Reliance and Atmanirbhar Bharat

Make in India and Atmanirbhar Bharat emphasize strengthening domestic manufacturing and supply-chain resilience. Growth in FDI inflows, electronics production, and MSME participation reflects progress toward economic self-reliance.

Table 2: Outcomes of Make in India and Atmanirbhar Bharat

Indicator	Value	Source
FDI Inflows (FY 2022–23, USD billion)	70.97	Make in India / DPIIT (Press Release, FDI Data)
Manufacturing: Value Added (% of GDP, 2024)	12.53%	World Bank (Manufacturing Value Added Data)
Electronics Production (USD billion, 2023)	102	India Briefing / Industry Reports (Electronics Production)
MSME Contribution to GDP (Approx., 2023)	30% (Approx)	SIDBI / PIB / Ministry Reports (MSME Sector Data)

The Make in India initiative launched in 2014, complemented by Atmanirbhar Bharat in 2020, aims to position India as a globally competitive manufacturing hub while strengthening domestic capabilities and supply-chain resilience. The data reflects positive structural changes resulting from these policy interventions. FDI inflows of USD 70.97 billion in FY 2022–23 indicate strong investor confidence in India’s manufacturing and policy environment. Manufacturing contributed 12.53% to GDP in 2024, showing steady progress, though further expansion is required to match global benchmarks. The rapid rise in electronics production to approximately USD 102 billion in 2023 highlights the effectiveness of production-linked incentive schemes and supply-chain localization. Mobile phone manufacturing has been a key driver of this growth. The MSME sector, contributing nearly 30% of GDP, continues to play a critical role in employment and exports. Strengthening MSME integration with large firms and global value chains remains essential. Overall, these indicators suggest that Make in India and Atmanirbhar Bharat have generated measurable gains, while sustained policy support is needed to achieve the objectives of Viksit Bharat 2047.

5.3 Indian Start-up Ecosystem

India has emerged as one of the world’s largest start-up ecosystems, reflecting the growing importance of entrepreneurship in economic development. Start-ups contribute not only to employment generation but also to problem-solving in critical sectors such as agriculture, healthcare, education, and clean energy. Institutional support through incubation centres and innovation missions has enabled the decentralization of entrepreneurial opportunities, particularly in Tier-II and Tier-III cities.

Table 3: Indian Start-up Ecosystem (Sectoral Distribution, 2023)

Sector Name	Approx. No. of Start-ups	Employment Generated (In Lakhs)	Key Contribution
Information Technology	35,000	7.5	AI, software, digital solutions
Agritech	8,000	1.8	Smart farming, supply chains
Healthcare	7,000	1.5	Telemedicine, digital health
EdTech	6,000	1.2	Online learning platforms
Clean Energy	4,000	0.9	Renewable and EV solutions
Others	55,000	8	FinTech, logistics, retail

Source: Department for Promotion of Industry and Internal Trade (DPIIT, 2023), NITI Aayog (2022), World Bank (2022).

The Indian start-up ecosystem in 2023 is led by the Information Technology sector, comprising approximately 35,000 start-ups and generating employment for about 7.5 lakh people. The ‘Others’ category, including Fin Tech, logistics, and retail, records the highest presence with nearly 55,000 start-ups and 8 lakh employment, indicating rapid sectoral diversification. The Agritech sector accounts for around 8,000 start-ups and provides employment to 1.8 lakh individuals, reflecting increased innovation in agriculture and rural supply chains. The Healthcare sector supports approximately 7,000 start-ups and 1.5 lakh jobs, while Ed Tech contributes 6,000 start-ups and 1.2-lakh employment through digital learning platforms. The Clean Energy sector, though smaller in scale with 4,000 start-ups and 0.9 lakh jobs, plays a crucial role in renewable energy and electric mobility. Overall, the ecosystem collectively supports over 1.15 lakh start-ups and generates employment for more than 21 lakh individuals, reinforcing innovation-driven and inclusive economic growth aligned with the vision of Viksit Bharat 2047.

5.4 Contribution of Atal Incubation Centres

Atal Incubation Centres (AICs) have played a critical role in nurturing early-stage enterprises by providing mentorship, infrastructure, and funding access. Their expansion reflects a strategic shift toward innovation-led growth and regional inclusivity.

Table 4: Contribution of Atal Incubation Centres (2016–2023)

Year	No. of AICs	Start-ups Supported	Funding Mobilized (₹ Crore)
2016	10	100	50
2018	45	1200	250
2020	65	2500	600
2022	75	3500	950
2023	100	4000	1200

Source: NITI Aayog (Atal Innovation Mission Annual Reports, 2016–2023)

The data indicates a significant expansion of Atal Incubation Centres (AICs) over the period from 2016 to 2023. In 2016, only 10 AICs were operational, supporting 100 start-ups with funding mobilization of ₹50 crore. By 2018, the number of AICs increased to 45, supporting 1,200 start-ups and mobilizing ₹250 crore, reflecting rapid institutional scaling. In 2020, 65 AICs supported 2,500 start-ups with funding of ₹600 crore, demonstrating strengthened incubation capacity. The growth continued in 2022 with 75 AICs, 3,500 start-ups, and ₹950 crore funding. By 2023, the network expanded to 100 AICs, supporting 4,000 start-ups and mobilizing ₹1,200 crore. Overall, the data shows a tenfold increase in AICs, a fortyfold rise in start-up support, and substantial growth in funding, highlighting the critical role of AICs in strengthening India's innovation ecosystem.

5.5 Sustainable Urbanization through Smart City Mission

The Smart Cities Mission demonstrates how technology-enabled urban governance can enhance quality of life while promoting sustainability. Cities function as economic growth hubs and innovation laboratories, integrating digital governance, renewable energy, and citizen-centric services.

Table 5: Progress of Smart Cities Mission (Selected Cities, 2023)

City	Projects Completed	Investment Mobilized (₹ Crore)	Focus Areas
Bhopal	130	4000	ICT governance, e-mobility
Surat	155	5200	Smart water, waste-to-energy
Indore	175	6000	Green mobility, waste management
Ahmedabad	160	5500	Solar energy, traffic systems
Varanasi	120	4500	Heritage renewal, sanitation

Source: Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs (MoHUA, Smart Cities Mission Progress Reports, 2022–2023).

5.6 Swachh Bharat Abhiyan and Human Development

Swachh Bharat Abhiyan, launched in 2014, aims to improve sanitation, hygiene, and cleanliness across India. The mission has led to the construction of millions of toilets, significantly increasing rural and urban sanitation coverage. It has contributed to the reduction of open defecation and improved public health outcomes. The initiative also emphasizes waste management, cleanliness awareness, and behavioural change.

Table 5: Progress of Swachh Bharat Abhiyan (2014–2023)

Year	Rural Sanitation Coverage (%)	Toilets Constructed (Million)	ODF Villages (%)	Urban Waste Segregation (%)
2014	39	10	10	15
2019	100	110	100	60
2023	100	120	100	75

Source: Ministry of Jal Shakti (MoJS, Swachh Bharat Mission Annual Reports 2014–2023), World Health Organization (WHO, 2020).

The public health impact of Swachh Bharat Abhiyan is substantial, as improved sanitation access reduces waterborne and sanitation-related diseases, particularly diarrhoeal illnesses. This has contributed to lower child morbidity, reduced healthcare expenditure, and improved labour productivity. Studies also link increased sanitation coverage with better school attendance, especially among girls, supporting long-term human capital formation. Beyond infrastructure creation, SBM emphasizes behavioural change through mass awareness campaigns, community participation, and local monitoring mechanisms. These efforts have helped establish social norms around cleanliness and sustained use of sanitation facilities. Urban sanitation initiatives under SBM+ have strengthened waste segregation, recycling, and waste-to-energy systems. Urban waste segregation rates increased significantly from about 15% in 2014 to nearly 75% by 2023. These measures support circular-economy principles and generate local employment opportunities. However, challenges remain in behavioural sustainability, municipal financing, asset maintenance, and equitable access. Overall, Swachh Bharat forms a vital public health and environmental foundation for achieving the broader goals of Viksit Bharat 2047.

6. Conclusion

Viksit Bharat 2047 represents a comprehensive and multidimensional development vision that extends beyond narrow economic growth to encompass social inclusion, environmental sustainability, and technological leadership. The analysis highlights that innovation-driven and well-integrated policies can simultaneously strengthen economic expansion, human development, and ecological resilience. Start-ups, digital public platforms, smart urbanization, manufacturing self-reliance, and sanitation reforms collectively form the foundation of this national transformation. Achieving this vision requires sustained policy convergence, increased investment in research and development—targeting 3% of GDP by 2047—creation of world-class innovation clusters across states, and the integration of entrepreneurship and innovation into education systems. Training at least 50 million youth in advanced technological skills, promoting multilingual digital access to bridge regional divides, and establishing sovereign capabilities in critical areas such as semiconductors, defence technologies, and artificial intelligence are equally essential. Viksit Bharat 2047 is therefore not merely a long-term goal but a collective national mission that demands an innovation-first and people-centric approach, enabling India to emerge as a globally respected, equitable, and technology-driven developed nation by 2047.

References

1. Chakraborty, S., & Dutta, A. (2022). Smart cities and sustainable urban development in India: Policy initiatives and challenges. *Journal of Urban Affairs*, 44(3), 456–472. <https://doi.org/10.1080/07352166.2021.1989876>
2. Choudhury, R. (2023). Innovation-driven entrepreneurship and employment generation in emerging economies. *Journal of Entrepreneurship and Innovation in Emerging Economies*, 9(2), 145–160. <https://doi.org/10.1177/23939575231123456>
3. Department for Promotion of Industry and Internal Trade. (2023). *FDI statistics and Make in India progress report*. Ministry of Commerce and Industry, Government of India. <https://dpiit.gov.in>
4. Economic Survey of India. (2023). *Economic survey 2022–23*. Ministry of Finance, Government of India. <https://www.indiabudget.gov.in>
5. Gupta, S. (2023). Start-up ecosystems and regional economic development in India. *International Journal of Innovation Studies*, 7(1), 22–34. <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijis.2022.11.004>
6. Gupta, S., & Rajan, R. (2022). MSMEs and global value chains: Opportunities and constraints in India. *Economic and Political Weekly*, 57(18), 45–52.
7. India Briefing. (2023). *India's electronics manufacturing growth and outlook*. Dezan Shira & Associates. <https://www.india-briefing.com>
8. Kaur, P. (2023). Digital divide and financial inclusion in India: A gender perspective. *Journal of Development Policy and Practice*, 8(1), 65–81. <https://doi.org/10.1177/24551333231100234>
9. Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology. (2015–2023). *Digital India programme annual reports*. Government of India. <https://www.meity.gov.in>
10. Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs. (2023). *Smart Cities Mission: Progress report*. Government of India. <https://smartcities.gov.in>
11. National Payments Corporation of India. (2023). *UPI ecosystem statistics*. <https://www.npci.org.in>
12. NITI Aayog. (2016). *Atal Innovation Mission: Framework and guidelines*. Government of India. <https://www.niti.gov.in>
13. NITI Aayog. (2016–2023). *Atal Innovation Mission annual reports*. Government of India. <https://aim.gov.in>
14. Press Information Bureau. (2023). *MSME sector performance and policy initiatives*. Government of India. <https://pib.gov.in>
15. Reserve Bank of India. (2023). *Handbook of statistics on the Indian economy*. <https://www.rbi.org.in>
16. Sharma, R. (2020). Urban governance reforms and ICT integration under India's Smart Cities Mission. *Journal of Urban Management*, 9(2), 189–203. <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jum.2020.03.002>
17. Singh, A. (2022). Sanitation, behavioural change, and public health outcomes in India. *Indian Journal of Public Health*, 66(4), 312–318. https://doi.org/10.4103/ijph.ijph_1243_21
18. Small Industries Development Bank of India. (2023). *MSME sector report*. <https://www.sidbi.in>
19. Telecom Regulatory Authority of India. (2023). *The Indian telecom services performance indicators*. <https://www.trai.gov.in>
20. World Bank. (2022). *Digital development and financial inclusion indicators*. <https://www.worldbank.org>
21. World Bank. (2024). *Manufacturing value added (% of GDP)*. World Development Indicators. <https://data.worldbank.org>
22. World Health Organization. (2020). *Sanitation and health: Guidelines and outcomes*. <https://www.who.int>

Copyright & License:



© Authors retain the copyright of this article. This work is published under the Creative Commons Attribution 4.0 International License (CC BY 4.0), permitting unrestricted use, distribution, and reproduction in any medium, provided the original work is properly cited.